
TOWN OF KENT
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

41 Kent Green Boulevard

P.O. Box 678

Kent, CT 06757
Phone (860) 927-4625 Fax (860) 927-4541

SEPTEMBER 10.2015 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES

The Town ofKent Planning and Zoning Commission held a regular meeting on Thursday, September 10,2015 at
7:00 p.m. in the Kent Town Hall.

1. CALL TO ORDER

Mr. Johnson called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.

2. ROLL CALL AND APPOINTMENT OF ALTERNATES IF REQUIRED

Commissioners Present: John Johnson, Chairman; Matt Wmter, Vice Chairman, Alice Hicks, Mark Weingarten,
Rich Chavka, Darrell Chemiske, Karen Cas^r and Wes Wyrick

StaffPresent: Donna Hayes, Land Use Administrator
Jennifer Calhoim, Land Use Clerk

Mr. Weingartenand Mr. Chavka were appointed to voting status.

Mr. Wintermovedto add thefollowing items to the agenda:

6.B.2. Application #62-15C, Arthur H. Howland& Associates, P.C., for Kent Center,LLC, 9 Maple Street,
traffic and pedestrian circulation improvements,signage, relocationof structures. Map 19 Block,42 Lot
35.

6.B.3. Application#63-15C, Arthur H. Howland & Associates,P.C., for 3 Maple Street LLC, 3 Maple Street,
traffic and pedestriancirculation improvements, signage,relocation of structures.Map 19Block42 Lot
33.

6.B.4. Application 64-15C, ArthurH. Howland & Associates, P.C.for Kent Center,LLC, 10North MainStreet,
traffic and pedestriancirculation improvements, signage,rdocation ofstructures.Map 19Block42 Lot
29.

Mr. Chavka seconded and the motion carried manimovsly.

Mr. Wyrick entered the meeting and Mr. Chavka was de-elevated.

3. READING AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES;

TOWN OF KENT PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR SEPTEMBER 10,2015

These are draft minutes. Corrections may be made by the Commission at the subsequent meeting.
Please refer to subsequent meeting minutes for possible corrections and approval ofthese mmutes.

PAGEl



3^. Regular Meeting Minutes ofAugust 13,2015.

Mr.Johnson noted that thesection about RickLevyin theminutes should beplaced under section 4. Karen Casey
stated that she was not listed as a present Commissioner.

Mr. Winter moved to approve the regular meeting minutes ofAugust 13, 2015with thechangesstatedabove. Mr.
Chemiskesecondedand the motioncarried unanimously.

4. PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS fORAL^;

5. OLD BUSINESS!

5.A. PUBLIC HEARINGS O^ossibiltty of closure, discussion and decision on the following):

5.B. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE DECISION

5.B.I. Rewrite ofZoning Regulations

Mrs. Hayes noted that therewill be a meeting on September 21®' at 7 pm. During the first halfhour, Sean Hayden
of NorthwestConservation District will be speakingabout the innerand outer corridor.

6. NEW BUSINESS:

PUBLIC HEARINGS (Possibility ofclosure, discussionand decisionon the following):

6.B. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE DECISION

63.1. Modification to Applications 41-15SP and 42-15C, SiSG, LLC, 39 North Main Street,
modification to include adding one office, Map 19Block 15 Lot 17.

Karren andChris Garrity werepresent forthemodification to theirapproved application. Mr.Garrity noted thatonly
2 offices would workon his property economically. A laptop showing photos of parking alongMain Street was
passed around to theCommissioners. Henotedthatit shows verylittleparking problems during theMonday-Friday,
work-day hours.

Mr. Garrityexplained that leasedparkingspacescould be an optionfor the offices. Theyhave reached out to the
Kent Town Center, Bank of America and Bain Real Estate.

Mr. Garritypassedaround the floorplandesignfor the office. Oneofficeis 12' x 15' andtheotheris slightlylarger.
The offices would be used part-time.

Mr. Johnson askedabout the tenants parking andMrs.Garrity noted that theyahready parkin the driveway andMr.
Garrityaddedthat they have always parkedthere.

The Commissioners tried to understand what was bemg presented to them. Mr. Weingarten noted that it had
previously beenapproved for 1professional, no employees andno staff. Mr. Winterstatedthat it isnowfora second
office wiA 1 professional

Mr. Johnsonnotedthat he tookhis owninformal surveyof parkingon NorthMain Streetduringbusiness hours. He
stated that he wrestled with the idea ofMain Street paring having a quick tumov^ and used by tourists, not

TOWN OF KENT PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR SEPTEMBER 10,2015

Thesearedraft minutes. Corrections maybe madeby the Commission at the subsequent meeting.
Pleaserefer to subsequent meeting minutes for possible corrections and approval ofthese minutes.

PAGE 2



designated for someone all day long. He addedthat he felt comfortable with the conceptafter seeingthat therewas
spaceon NorthMainStreetoutsidethe building duringthe dayand that the evenings andweekends willnotconflict.

Mr.Winter noted thathe feU morecomfortable and that thereseems to be enough parking within distances allowed
to consider.

Mr. Wyrickraised the question about leasedparkingand whether they were assigned. Mr. Garritynoted that Dr.
Monserrat'sparking at theKait TownCenteris. Mr. Wyrickaddedthat leasedparking for this application would
go a long way.

Mr. Garritynotedthat if thepublicrestrooms and parkingare approved and built by the town, tharewouldbe even
more public parking within 500' of his building.

Mrs.Garrity statedthatas ofTuesday, therewasan approved modification by the StateBuilding Inspector that they
do not need a handicap spot.

Ms. Winter asked how big the paved area was and Mrs. Garrity stated that it was 25' x 45'.

Mr. Chemiskestated that 2 professional officeschange the dynamics and providemore orderon Main Street.

Mr. Hicksquestioned thepart-timestatusof theseprofessionals and Mrs. Garrity statedthat theyalsoworkat other
locations.

Mr. Johnson notedthat he would be comfortable witha leaseagreement for 1 spaceper professional.

The Commissionand the Garritysagreedto this proposal.

Mr. Winter moved to approve the modification to applications 41-15SP and 42-15C, SiSG, LLC, 39 North Main
Street, modification to includeadding one office, Map 19 Block15Lot 17, withthe conditionthat there alwaysbe 2
designated spaces fi)r each professional within 500' of the building. Mr. Weingarten seconded and the motion
carried unanimously.

6.B.2. Application #62-15C, Arthur H. Howland & Associates, P.C., for Kent Center, LLC, 9
Maple Street, traffic and pedestrian circulation improvements, signage, relocation of
structures, Map 19 Block, 42 Lot 35.

6.B.3. Application #63-15C, Arthur H. Howland & Associates, P.C., for 3 Maple Street LLC, 3
Maple Street, traffic and pedestrian circulation improvements, signage, relocation of
structures. Map 19 Block 42 Lot 33.

6^.4. Application 64-15C, Arthur H. Howland & Associates, P.C. for Kent Center, LLC, 10
North Main Street, traffic and pedestrian circulation improvements, signage, relocation of
structures, Map 19 Block 42 Lot 29.

6.B.2,6.B.3 and 6.B.4. will be heard together.

Mr. Chemiske and Mr. Wyrick recused themselves from these applications.

Paul Szymanski, Professional Engineer from Arthur H. Howland & Associates, P.C., Nick Fobes, PLA, LEED AP
Principal of Hoerr SchaudtLandscapeArchitects and Hiram Williamswere present for the application.

TOWN OF KENT PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR SEPTEMBER 10,2015
These are draft minutes. Corrections may be made by the Commission at the subsequent meeting.
Please refer to subsequent meeting minutes for possible corrections and approvalofthese minutes.

PAGE 3



Mr. Szymanski noted that the modified plans show a 43.4% signage decrease. His clients are now owners of 3
Maple Street. He went on to show the modifications to the Commission.

The sign at the comer ofRt. 341 and Rt 7 has been removed
The freestanding sign at the &nn shop has been removed
The wall sign on the south side ofB. Johnstonehas been removed
The historical building to be relocated, will remain where it is on the property.
The windmills were eliminated.

The freestanding sign to the rear ofGiSbrds was 20 sf and is now approximately 4 sf.
Decreased width ofsignage along co3ee shop.
A small farm shop sign on the north side of house ofbooks was added.
A freestanding farm shop sign along the walkway by the house ofbooks has been added.
They have reducedthe paintedsignageon the gable endofthe MorrisonGalleryby 30%.
Reduced the hanging signs at the farm shop by 25%.
Removed the freestanding sign at the ferm shop.
Gifford's awning is now a pergola-typestructure but covered.

The locationofthe pergola was discussed. Mrs. Hayeswondered why it would not be locatedcloser to the parking
lot and Mr. Szymanskinoted that people would not go betweencars to get under it.

• They changedthe fencingat the comer ofRt 341 and Rt 7 so that thereare openfences
• There is a 6* fencealong the back propertyline.

Ms. Hicks was concernedabout all the "Kent Bams" signs. She counted 5 of them. She noted that they seemed
redundant. Mr. Szymanskinoted that they have 15 buildings.

Mr. Weingarten asked about the size ofsigns and how they comparedto what's allowedby the regulations.

The Commissioners then discussed the j&ct that 3 Maple Street and 10 North Main Street were not part of the
originalalternative signageprogram. Theyare separate lots. Mrs. Hayesnotedthat the signson theselots would
need to meet the sign requirements in the regulations.

Mr. Winter stated that he would not be in favor of reviewingthese sqjarate lots not under the alternative signage
program. He felt the signage should be cohesive.

Mrs. Hayesread the alternativesignageprogramregulation. Mr. Szymanski noted that he would carefully look at
the regulations and sit downwithMrs. Hayes.

Mr. Williams noted that (he three parcels area under differentLLC's and would be very complicated to put them
together. He addedthat thereare no proposed signs on 3 MapleStreetand felt that the signsproposed for 10Main
Street meet the zoning regulationrequirements.

Ms. Hicks noted the redundancy of the signs again and Mr. Williamsnoted that they have 3 entrances.

Mr. Johnsonasked about the timeline for the applicationand Mrs. Hayes noted that they have 35 days, but can ask
for an extension

TOWN OF KENT PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR SEPTEMBER 10,2015

Theseare draftminutes. Corrections maybe madeby the Commission at the subsequent meeting.
Pleaserefer to subsequent meeting minutes forpossible corrections andapproval oftheseminutes.

PAGE 4



Mrs. Hayes asked if she could get a PDF of the prints so that she could send them to Anchor Engineering and
Landscape Architect, Dusty McMahan and Kent Fire Dept.

Mrs. Hayes wondered ifFulling Lane had been tweaked. Mr. Szymanskinoted that it was made wider.

Mr. Johnson notedthat theplansshouldbe sent to ARBagain. Mr. Szymanski agreedandnotedthat theyhad asked
for certain things.

Mr. Johnson notedthat th^ he wouldlike to see trafficflow andparking.

Mr. Winta- stated that he was trying to figure out the parcel sqparationsversus the roadways. He noted that he was
nervous with the 3 separate applications. Mr. Szymanskinoted that there would be a blanket access and paikmg
agreement. Mrs. Hayes noted that it should be on the land records.

Mr. Chavka asked if there was enough parking.

Mr. Szymanskinoted that the existingparking is 100and they are proposing 108 spaces.

Mr. Winter wondered how the 108 compared to the regulations and uses.

Mrs. Calhoim noted that there was a change ofuse at the Farm Shop.

Mr. Johnsonnoted his concernabout the traffic circulationsand the 2 one-way areas.

Mr. Szymanski stated that there is currentlyno way to access 9 Maple Street off ofMain Street.FullingLane has
proposed to be opened up for 2 way access. They are also opening the accessway between the coffee shop and B.
Johnstone to allow walkways on both sides and one-way vehicular access.

It was a concern that the north side ofthe site would allow firetruck and ambulance access.

Mr. Johnson asked ifthe walkways were raised and it was noted that all interior crosswalks area raised.

Mr. Chavka was concerned about parking for tourists versus employees. Mr. Szymanski noted that they are
encouraging employee to park in more remote/less used spots.

Mrs. Hayes mentioned the apartments and w^e the residents would park and Mr. Szymanski showed her on the
plan that it was in the north comerof the property.

Mr. Johnson noted that he liked opening Fullmg and Old Bam Roads, but was still uneasy about removing the
parking alongside the coffee shop. He felt like that was important parking for Main Street businesses, ^ifr.
Szymanski noted that the downtown study encouraged sidewalks for pedestrian access. Mr. Johnson suggested
having curb cuts, but then allowing parking on one side. Mr, Szymanski stated that he would look into that. Ms.
Casey stated that it was super important to have walkways and that it was too narrow for parking. Mr. Williams
noted that they are encouraging pedestrian traffic into the development. Mr. Szymanskistated that he would see
what he could do to balance comments. Mr. Johnson just wondered what the long term effects would be to the
businesses on Main Street.

It was noted that the plans would be sent to the ARB, Gomen and York, Anchor Engineering and the Kent Fire
Department.

TOWN OF KENT PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR SEPTEMBER 10,2015
These are draft minutes. Correctionsmay be made by the Commissionat the subsequent meeting.
Please refer to subsequent meeting minutes for possible corrections and approval ofthese minutes.

PAGES



Mr. Szymanski statedtliathe wonldprovidea summary basedon the tweaksand information on eachproperty of
its intents.

Mr. Winterasked about the public restrooms and wondered if they would reconsider opening them to the public
again. Mr. Szymanski statedthat there are no discussions to open&e bathroomsto the public.

Mr. Wyrick and Mr. Chemiske returned to the meeting at this time.

7. STAFF REPORT:

7.A. Conversation with Glenn Chalder, Planimetries, regarding new drone regulation,

Mrs.Hayesnotedthat shespoke withGlennChalder regarding drones after it wasbroughtup by Rick Levyat the
last meeting. Mr. Chalder noted that the only thing he could find is that other towns are looking into it also and
looking for the same information. Mr. Chalder noted that it was something to start looking into, but he doesn't
know where to start It is something that is not tied to the land. He suggested that instead of maldng it a zoning
regulations, perhaps making a town ordinance.

8. REPORT OF OFHCERS AND COMMITTEES:

8.A. IncentiveHousing Zone Study Subcommitteeupdate.

Mrs. Hayes noted that she has a meeting with Sean Hayden on the IS*** towalk the property to look for wetlands.
Mr. Hayden has recommended that a consultant to an official wetlands report. He notedthat whoever is designing
the area, theyshouldembrace the drainage ditchandmake it part of the landlayout.

9. OTHER COMMUNICATIONS AND CORRESPONDENCE:

9.A. AdministrativePermits and CertificatesofCompliance

9.B, CGS 8-3BReferral,NewMilfordZoningRegulations, Chapter 15 Definitions.

The Commission received these documents.

10. ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Winter moved to adjourn at 8:37p.m. Mr. Chemiske secondedand the motion carried unanimously.

illy submit

Jomier Calhoun
Land Use Clerk UJiJLi

TOWN OF KENT PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR SEPTEMBER 10,2015
Theseare draft minutes. Corrections maybe madeby the Commission at the subsequent meeting.
Pleaserefer to subsequent meeting minutes for possible corrections and approval oftheseminutes.

PAGE 6


